
 

 

 
November 6, 2015 
 
 

 
 
Re:     15ITB99402K-JAJ 
Fulton County Government Center Remediation of  
Peachtree Terrace and Lower Terrace 
 
 
Dear Bidders: 
 
Attached is one (1) copy of Addendum 3, hereby made a part of the above referenced 
Invitation to Bid.   
 
Except as provided herein, all terms and conditions in the Invitation to Bid referenced 
above remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 

James A. Jones 

 

James A. Jones 
Assistant Purchasing Agent  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

15ITB99402K-JAJ 
Fulton County Government Center Remediation 
Of Peachtree Terrace and Lower Terrace 
Addendum No. 3 
Page Two 
 
This Addendum forms a part of the contract documents and modifies the original ITB 
documents as noted below: 

 
Section 32 14 20 OPEN JOINT PAVER SYSTEM is attached as Exhibit 1. 
 
Question: Do Davis Bacon wage rates apply for this project? 
 
 Answer: No 
 
Question: Page 3 of 5, Cost Proposal, of bid form does not align with the Technical 
Specifications Summary of Work. Should we modify the existing? 
 
Answer: No. Use the corresponding CSI division sections (1-16) to record your cost. 
 
Question: Can the Prime Contractor bid the project without a General Contractor 
license? If his subcontractor has a General Contractor license can it be used in lieu of or 
do they need to joint venture. 
 
Answer: You cannot bid without a General Contractor license. A subcontractor’s 
General Contractor license cannot be used in lieu of. If you submit a bid as a joint 
venture, all joint venture partners must have a General Contractor license. 
 
Question: Will there be a laydown area for the project? How much space? 
 
Answer: The laydown area can be identified within the construction area during 
construction and will be contingent upon the approval of the Construction Manager. 14’ 
by 22’ of space will be available in the existing cafeteria for the construction operation. 
 
Question: Will parking be allocated for the contractor’s work vehicles? 
 
Answer: There will be three parking spaces devoted for this project on Mitchell Street. 
The Contractor will be required to provide protective barricades for this area. 
 
Question: Please expand on the badging process, i.e. requirements for individuals and 
length of process. 
 
Answer: Individuals will be required to provide identification and the last four numbers 
of their Social Security number to the Department of Public Works/General Services 
who will issue a letter to the Public Safety Department for a temporary badge. The 
process should take approximately 48 hours. 



 

 

Question: Will the contractor need to hire security or utilize Fulton County’s security? 
 
Answer: Security is the responsibility of the Contractor. 
 
Question: Will temporary electricity, water and toilet facilities be provided? 
 
Answer: The contractor shall provide their own temporary power. Water is available in 
the central plant and existing cafeteria. Temporary toilet facilities are ONLY available in 
the existing cafeteria. The Contractor is responsible for daily cleaning. 
 
Question: Has a source been established for the Granite panel replacement? Has an 
anchorage detail been established during Phase I of the project for new panels? 
 
Answer: The Contractor will need to research available granite suppliers for sources of 
replacement granite materials. There are multiple local stone companies with the ability 
to source the required materials for the project. The existing anchorage details will vary 
depending on the building location. The typical detail encountered on Phase I is metal 
pin attachment of granite panels to structural metal and substrate framing. 
 
Question: To what extent does existing waterproofing need to be removed? 
 
Answer: Williamson & Associates recommends that the Contractor estimate for 100% 
removal of the existing waterproofing membrane. Removal of all loose and/or damaged 
portions of the existing waterproofing as well as burning and scraping off of the existing 
poly film are acceptable as long as the waterproofing if fully adhered. 
 
Question: Will the entrance on Peachtree Street be closed during construction? 
 
Answer: The existing entrance at 110 Peachtree Street will require closure during some 
portion of the scope of work. It is not anticipated that the existing entrance will need to 
be closed for the entire duration of the project. 
 
Question: Will a certain type of fencing be required on Peachtree? 
 
Answer: The Contractor will need to match the existing fencing configuration, material 
and finish for those sections and/or areas of existing fencing that will require repair, 
modification and/or replacement to support fencing removal. Fencing shall be reinstalled 
as noted in the contract documents. 
 
Question: Will there be restrictions placed on working hours? Will construction noise be 
a factor? 
 
Answer: See Special Conditions. Noisy demolition work can only occur after hours or 
on the weekend. 
 
 



 

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF ADDENDUM NO. 3 
   
The undersigned proposer acknowledges receipt of this addendum by returning one (1) 
copy of this form with the proposal package to the Department of Purchasing & Contract 
Compliance, Fulton County Public Safety Building, 130 Peachtree Street, Suite 1168, 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 by the bid due date and time November 13, 2015, 11:00 A.M. 
 
 
This is to acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 3, __________ day of ____________, 
20__. 
 
________________________________ 
Legal Name of Bidder 
 
       
________________________________ 
Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
________________________________ 
Title 
 





151TB99402K-JAJ Section 4 
Division 1 - General Requirements Fulton County Government Center Peachtree and Lower Terrace Remediation 


Fulton County Government Center - Upper Terrace 
W&A-214 


321420 
Open Joint Paver System 


SECTION 32 1420 


OPEN JOINT PAVER SYSTEM 


PART ONE: GENERAL 


1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS 


B. Drawings and general provision of contract, including General and Supplementary 
Conditions and other Division 1 Specification Sections, apply to work of this Section. 


1.2 SCOPE 


A. Related Work Specified Elsewhere: 
1. Concrete work (Sections of Division 3). 
2. Waterproofing membrane (Section 07 12 00). 
3. Drains in waterproofed concrete slabs above interior spaces (Section 15 41 


00). 
B. Work Included This Section: 


1. Precast concrete paver systems for application on structural concrete slab 
above heated spaces. 


2. Work of this Section shall include the specified rigid board insulation, precast 
concrete pavers and all accessory materials specified herein or required for 
complete and proper installation of the pavers system shown on the drawings 
and specified herein. 


1.3 QUALITY ASSURANCE 


A. Manufacturer Qualifications: 
1. All products covered under this Section shall be produced by a single 


manufacturer unless otherwise specified. 
2. Manufacturer shall submit evidence of having not less than fifteen (15) years 


successful production of this product. 
3. The paver manufacturer shall demonstrate, either by proven field 


performance of the laboratory freeze-thaw test that the paving units have 
adequate durability if they are to be subjected to a freeze-thaw environment. 
a. Satisfactory field performance is indicated when units similar in 


composition and made with the same manufacturing process as those to 
be supplied to the purchaser, do not exhibit objectionable deterioration 
after at least three (3) years. 


b. The units used as the basis for proven field performance shall have been 
exposed to the same general type of environment, temperature range 
and traffic volume as is contemplated for the units supplied to the 
purchaser. 
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Open Joint Paver System 


B. Subcontractor Qualifications: 
1. Subcontractor shall submit evidence of skill and not less than five (5) years 


specialized experience with this product. 
C. Pre-Installation Conference: As directed by the Construction Manager. 


1.4 SUBMITTALS 


A. Shop Drawings: Submit showing all components required for the paver installation 
requirements. Shop drawings shall include plan drawings showing layout of all paver 
areas and detail drawings showing how the various components of the systems fit 
together. Include manufacturer's literature completely describing all components of 
the paver systems and giving detailed installation recommendations and instructions. 
Also include detailed installation drawings for all precast pavers. 


A. Paver shop drawings to be provided by installing contractor. 
B. Samples for Verification Purposes: Three (3) sample pavers of each manufactured 


type and color selected or specified. Pavers will be 12" x 12" size. 
C. Certificates of Training in accordance with Contractor Qualifications identified in 


Section 01 40 00 Quality Requirements. 


1.5 DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING 


A. Protect concrete pavers and accessory materials during shipment, storage and 
construction against damage. 


B. Protect cementitious materials from deterioration by moisture and temperature. Store 
in a dry location. 


1.6 PROJECT CONDITIONS 


A. Comply with manufacturer's requirement regarding weather, substrate and other 
project conditions. 


B. Field Constructed Mock-Up: Prior to beginning production work, construct a mockup 
approximately 4 foot by 4 foot for approval by the architect. Mock-up may be located 
so as to be incorporated in the work after approval. Mock-up shall be located above 
a heated space and shall include the specified waterproofing membrane, protection 
material (if required) and the precast pedestal supported paver system. 


PART 2 - PRODUCTS 


2.1 MATERIALS 


A. BASIS OF DESIGN: The paver systems specified herein are based upon products 
manufactured by Hanover Architectural Products. 


B. Paver systems equal in appearance and function and meeting these specifications, 
will be acceptable when the specified submittals are approved in writing by the 
Architect prior to bid. 


Page 139 of 163 







151TB99402K-JAJ Section 4 
Division 1 - General Requirements Fulton County Government Center Peachtree and Lower Terrace Remediation 


Fulton County Government Center - Upper Terrace 
W&A-214 


321420 
Open Joint Paver System 


2.2 PAVER SYSTEM: 


In order to describe type and quality of products intended, these specifications are based 
upon the "Prest Paver on High-Tab Pedestals" system manufactured by Hanover 
Architectural Products. 


A. The paver system shall include the following components and all other accessory 
materials required for a complete and proper installation. 


1. Precast Concrete Pavers: Paver units to be 23 7/8" square x 2" thick 
(manufacturer's standard color(s) and texture(s) to be selected by Architect): 


a. Portland Cement: ASTM Specifications C150. 
b. Aggregates: All aggregates used will be normal weight aggregate, 


conforming to ASTM Specifications C33. 
c. Coloring: Coloring used shall conform to ASTM Standards where 


applicable. 
d. Compression Strength: Each unit shall have a compression strength of 


8,000 psi with no individual unit less than 7,000 psi when tested in 
accordance with ASTM C140. (based on 23 7/8" sq. x 2" thick and 
standard mix design). 


e. Water absorption: Shall not be greater than 6% according to ASTM 
C140. (based on 23 7/8" sq. x 2" thick and standard mix design). 


f. Flexural Strength: Not less than 800 psi per ASTM 293. (based on 23 
13/16" sq. x 2" thick and standard mix design). 


g. Freeze/Thaw: Durability of the paver shall meet the freeze/thaw tests in 
accordance with Section 8 of ASTM C1260. Specimens, when tested, 
shall have no breakage and not greater that 1 % loss in dry weight of any 
individual unit when subject to 50 cycles of freeze/thaw. (based on 23 
13/16" sq. x 3" thick and standard mix design). 


h. Center load: Pavers shall support a minimum concentrated load of 1 ,850 
Ibs. When pressure is applied to a paver supported on four (4) corners. 
WT CL96. (based on 23 7/8" sq. x 2" thick and standard mix design). 


i. Sizing: Permissible variations in dimensions shall not differ by more than 
1/16" from width, height, length or thickness. Standard units are 
manufactured with a 3/16" bevel on all four (4) sides of finished surface. 
Unit shall conform to a true plane and not differ by more than 1/16"in 
either concave and/or convex warpage. 


B. INSULATION, PEDESTALS AND ACCESSORIES 


1. Rigid insulation to be minimum 60 psi and shall comply with all requirements of 
system manufacturer. See drawings for required thicknesses. 


2. Provide manufacturer's standard pedestals and shims oftype(s) required for project 
conditions. Provide protection layer between pedestals and rigid insulation as 
recommended by system manufacturer. 


3. Installation Handles: 


a. Units to handle specified paver sizes, allowing installing contractor to set 
units into proper location with 1/8" joint between units. Also allows for 
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removal and reinstallation units without causing any damage to units or 
adjacent units, thus allowing inspection of utilities or drains at any time. 


4. Concrete Mix: 
a. Pre-mixed blended concrete dry to have a 5,500 psi at 28 days 


compressive strength. 
b. Material shall comply with requirements of ASTM C387. 


5. Other Accessory Materials: 
a. Shall be either provided by the manufacturer of the precast concrete 


pavers and precast units, or shall be specifically recommended by them. 


PART 3 - EXECUTION 


3.1 INSTALLATION OF PAVER SYSTEM 


A. Inspect deck and fixed elevation locations. All height or location problems are to be 
corrected before installation. 


B. Compare layout of deck to shop drawings and architectural drawings. All variances 
of field conditions to drawings are to be reviewed and corrected prior to starting 
installation. 


C. Level surface installation using pedestals and shims following manufacturer's 
installation procedures. No variances to system allowed. 


3.2 TOLERANCES 


A. Maximum of 1/32" height variation between adjacent pavers. 
B. Individual pavers shall not vary more than 1/32" from level across width of the paver. 
C. Paved areas shall not vary more than 1/8" from level in a distance of 10' measured 


at any location and in any direction. 
D. Joints between pavers to be 1/8". 


3.3 CLEANING AND PROTECTION 


A. Remove and replace pavers which are loose, chipped, broken, stained or otherwise 
damaged, or if units do not match adjoining units as intended. Provide new units to 
match adjoining units and install in same manner as original units, with same joint 
treatment to eliminate evidence of replacement. 


B. Cleaning: Remove residue, mortar stains and all other types of soiling from exposed 
paver surfaces, wash and scrub clean. 


C. Provide final protection and maintain conditions in a manner acceptable to installer, 
which ensures paver work being without damage or deterioration at time of 
substantial completion. 


D. Joints and drains should be kept clean to protect water back up. 


End of Section 
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